






Chairman’s Statement

Annual Report 2008

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of my fellow Directors, I 

am pleased to present herewith 

the Annual Report and Audited 

Financial Statements for the 

Group and Company for 

the financial year ended 

31 August 2008.

Financial Results

For the financial year ended 31 August 2008, the Group 
recorded an aggregate revenue of RM208.54 million as 
compared to RM173.02 million in the previous financial year.  
This represents an increase of 20.53%.  The higher revenue 
was contributed by our Trans-Eastern Kedah Interland 
Highway project and flood mitigation scheme at Bertam-
Kepala Batas, Pulau Pinang. However, the Group posted a 
profit before tax of RM25.66 million compared to RM39.00 
million for the preceding year.  The lower profit before tax, 
despite an increase in revenue of the Group, was mainly due 
to the increase in construction materials costs.

Dividend

The Board of Directors is pleased to recommend the payment 
of a first and final dividend of 5.5 sen per ordinary share, less 
25% tax in respect of the financial year ended 31 August 2008 
subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting in appreciation for their continued 
support. 

Business Overview

The Group’s two major on-going construction projects 
were progressing on schedule during the financial year. 
Construction works for the Trans-Eastern Kedah Interland 
Highway Project (TEKIH) are in various stages. The project 
had reached an overall completion of 78% as at 31 August 
2008. The first stretch of TEKIH between Chainage 0-6,000 
(Kota Putra to Kampung Durian Burung) was completed and 
opened for public use since August 2008. The entire project 
is expected to be completed by the second quarter of 2009. 
The flood mitigation scheme at Bertam-Kepala Batas, Pulau 
Pinang is also progressing satisfactorily. This project achieved 
a physical completion of 80% in the financial year 2008. 

Although the construction activities of the Group have 
progressed as planned, the construction industry was 
operating in a difficult and challenging environment given 
the abnormal escalation of prices of essential construction 
materials such as cement, steel, other metals, fuel and 
transportation cost.  The management, in response to these 
uncertainties, had exercised great prudence and extra 
caution in the management of the Group’s financial matters 
and construction operations. Effective cash and financial 
management were the immediate response in dealing with 
these challenges. In addition, strategies had also been drawn 
up to enhance operational efficiency including control on the 
logistics of construction materials.

The Group’s maiden property development in Pandamaran, 
Klang, Selangor Darul Ehsan has been rescheduled in line 
with the new policies and guidelines implemented by the 
new State Government. The Group intends to develop the 
land into a mixed development known as “Taman Ehsan 
Jaya” which will comprise residential houses, shop-lots and 
commercial units. The proposed development is estimated 
to span over five (5) years and the entire development, once 
completed, shall emerge as a comprehensive township.

As a measure of the Group’s commitment towards excellence 
in specialised construction management and becoming 
a leading turnkey contractor, the Group has embarked 
on seeking accreditation of the ISO 9001:2008 (Quality 
Management Systems). This is proceeding on target.

Outlook and Prospects

In the local construction industry, the operating environment 
for construction companies has become increasingly 
challenging. The competitive nature of the industry and the 
escalating costs of construction materials have added further 
pressure to an already difficult operating environment during 
the past year.
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In the year ahead, the domestic market is expected to see an 
overall moderation in economic growth due to uncertainties 
in the global economy. The Board however is optimistic that 
we have the necessary resilience and the ability to adapt and 
react to the macro conditions to mitigate the adverse effects 
of the anticipated slowdown. As it is, the Government has 
already started to implement macro strategies with the aim of 
minimising adverse impacts resulting from the global financial 
crisis. We envisage that private investment will play an 
increasingly major role in sustaining the Malaysian economy 
and to this end, Melati Ehsan is ready to meet the challenges 
and to contribute to the betterment of the Malaysian economy 
without prejudicing our targeted profits. In addition, the Board 
is at all times constantly looking out for ways to enhance the 
quality of our income stream and shareholders’ funds.

Recent falls in prices of key construction materials have given 
the industry some relief. We anticipate that the abrupt price 
fluctuations of construction materials are over and prices are 
expected to remain generally stable.

In property development, the Group is confident that the 
development in Pandamaran, Klang will receive favourable 
take-up rates as the proposed products which consist of 2 
storey shop offices and gated community for double storey 
terrace houses are popular within the Klang valley. The 
management will constantly evaluate the product mix to be 
developed on the said lands to meet the market demands 
and expectation.

Barring any other unforeseen circumstances, we expect the 
next current financial year to be satisfactory.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Our Group acknowledges the values of corporate social 
responsibility. Towards this end, we are continually 
emphasising on human capital development and ensure that 
our employees remain knowledgeable and competitive in this 
uncertain and challenging environment. 

Whilst doing this, Melati Ehsan also participates and takes 
initiatives on a community dimension.  Unvarying support in 
the form of sponsorship and funding have been channelled 
and will continue to be channelled to underprivileged groups, 
non-profit organisations and higher learning institutions as we 
believe that a great nation begins with a caring society.
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Iskandar Dzakurnain Bin Badarudin who had resigned from 
the Board effective from 10 December 2008 for his invaluable 
contribution during his tenure of service with Melati Ehsan.

I wish to extend our heartfelt thanks to our contractors, 
consultants, suppliers, bankers and value shareholders for 
their invaluable support and to the relevant government 
authorities for their continued guidance and assistance.

To the management and staff, I would like to  
acknowledge their dedicated services and hard work 
throughout what has been a challenging year. I am confident 
that they will continue to strive to further improve their 
performance in order to face the challenges ahead.

Finally, my gratitude to my fellow Board members for their 
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DATO’ DR. KU ABD RAHMAN BIN KU ISMAIL
Independent Non-Executive Chairman 
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The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance Revised 2007 (“the Revised Code”) sets out the basic principles 
and best pratices on structures and processes that companies may adopt in achieving the effective governance  
framework. Towards this end, the Board is pleased to present herewith its statement on how it has applied the principles of the 
Revised Code and the extent of compliance with the best practices. 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is led by a team of directors who have the professional and business experiences in construction sector.  During the 
financial year, the Board were made up of four (4) Executive Directors and four (4) Non-Executive Directors of which three (3) of 
them being the Independent Non-Executive Directors.  A description of the background of each director is presented on pages 
8 to 10.

The role and responsibilities of the Chairman and Managing Director are separated and assumed by different  
directors.  In order to provide an avenue to the shareholders to convey their concerns, as recommended in the Best Practices, 
Datuk Alias Bin Ali continues to act as the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director, serving as an alternative for shareholders 
to convey their concerns and seek clarifications from the Board.

The Board noted the best practices and Bursa’s requirements on the composition of non-executive director in the Audit Committee. 
Subsequent to the financial year, the Board had appointed Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron being the Independent Non-Executive 
director on 15 January 2009 to address the above composition requirement.  

The Board is provided with appropriate information to enable it to discharge its duties.  The management is invited to attend the 
Board and Audit Committee meetings and to brief and provide explanation to the directors on the operations of the Group.  In 
addition, the Board is also briefed progressively by the Company Secretary, External Auditors and the Internal Auditors on new or 
changes in corporate regulatory requirements.  

The Board recognises the importance for reviewing and adopting a strategic plan and overseeing the conduct of the business.  
This will ensure that the business of the Group is being properly managed.  Presently, the performance of the Group is reviewed 
by the Board in consideration of the quarterly financial results and operation information provided by the Executive Committee.  

During the financial year, five (5) Board meetings were held. Except for Datuk Iskandar Dzakurnain Bin Badarudin who was unable 
to attend the Board meetings due to his health reason, the details of attendance by the Board members during this financial 
period are set out as below: 

Director Designation
Number of

meetings attended

Dato’ Dr. Ku Abd Rahman Bin Ku Ismail Independent Non-Executive Chairman 5

Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee Managing Director 5

Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin Yahya Non-Independent Non-Executive Director 5

Datuk Alias Bin Ali Independent Non-Executive Director 5

Ir. Tan Hong Hing @ Tan Eng Hing Executive Director 4

Encik Radzulai Bin Yahaya Executive Director 5

Mr. Lim Tong Hee Executive Director 5

The Board maintains specific Board committees to ensure objectivity and reasonable time are provided to the specific Board 
agenda.  Presently, there are four (4) Board Committees namely Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee 
and Remuneration Committee. In order to ensure the direction and control of the Group is firmly within the Board, the Board has 
defined the terms of reference for each Committee. Significant matters deliberated in the Committees are reported to the Board 
during the Board meetings.

Corporate Governance Statement
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BOARD COMMITTEES

i. Executive Committee

 The main objective of the Executive Committee is to assist the Board in reviewing the progress of the strategic plan of the 
Group and overseeing the conduct of the business. The Group Managing Director chairs the Committee and the members 
of the Committee comprise all executive directors and appointed senior management staff.  The areas of responsibility of 
the Committee are:-

 The Committee holds meeting at least fortnightly. Quarterly, the Group Managing Director and Executive Directors brief the 
Board on the key business development of the Group.

ii. Audit Committee

 The Revised Code provides that the Audit Committee shall consist of at least three (3) members who are exclusively Non-
Executive Directors and majority of whom are Independent Directors.  All the members shall be financially literate.  Further, it 
is provided that the Audit Committee Chairman should engage on continuous basis with the senior management, chairman 
of the board, CEO, head of finance, internal and external auditors in order to be kept informed.

 As mentioned in the foregoing, the Board had appointed an additional independent director. Accordingly, the Board 
had reconstituted the composition of the Audit Committee members in accordance with the above best practice. All the 
members of the Audit Committee are familiar with financial reporting and the Audit Committee Chairman has access to all 
Executive Directors, senior management, the External Auditors and the Internal Auditor of the Group.

 Annually, the Audit Committee reviews the appointment, performance and remuneration of the auditors before 
recommending them to the shareholders for re-appointment in the AGM. The Audit Committee noted the Revised Code’s 
best practice that at least two (2) meetings shall be held with the external auditors without the presence of executive board 
members annually and the Bursa Securities’ Listing Requirements that meeting with the external auditors and internal 
auditors without the presence of the Executive Directors and employees of the Group shall be held whenever deemed 
necessary. During the financial year, the non-executive and independent members of the Committee conducted a meeting 
with the External Auditors without the presence of the Executive Directors and management.  

 On separate note, the Board is mindful of the Listing Requirements on the review of the terms of office and performance of 
the Audit Committee and each of its members at least once every three (3) years.  

iii. Nomination Committee

 The Nomination Committee is established and maintained to ensure that there are formal and transparent procedures for 
the appointment of new directors to the Board and for the performance appraisal of directors.  The current members of the 
Committee are as follows:-

 Chairman : Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin Yahya   Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
 Member : Datuk Alias Bin Ali    Independent Non-Executive Director
 Member : Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron  Independent Non-Executive Director
        (appointed on 15 January 2009)
 Member : Datuk Iskandar Dzakurnain Bin Badarudin Independent Non-Executive Director
        (resigned on 10 December 2008)

Corporate Governance Statement
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 The Revised Code provides greater clarity on the aspects of which Nomination Committee should consider when 
recommending candidates for directorship.  In this case, the Nomination Committee should in making their recommendation 
to the Board, consider the candidates’:-

candidates’ ability to discharge his/her functions as expected from an independent director.

 The Revised Code further places the importance on the director appraisal where Nomination Committee should ensure 
that its assessments and evaluations are properly documented.  During the financial year, the Nomination Committee 
conducted a review on the appraisal of the Board, Board Committees and individual director.  

iv. Remuneration Committee

 The members of the Remuneration Committee are:

 Chairman : Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron  Independent Non-Executive Director
        (appointed on 15 January 2009)
 Chairman : Datuk Iskandar Dzakurnain Bin Badarudin Independent Non-Executive Director
        (resigned on 10 December 2008)
 Member : Dato’ Dr. Ku Abd Rahman Bin Ku Ismail  Independent Non-Executive Director
 Member : Ir Tan Hong Hing @ Tan Eng Hing   Executive Director

 The Committee considers the principles recommended by the Code in determining the executive directors’ remuneration, 
whereby, the executive remuneration is designed to link rewards to the Group’s performance. While, the non-executive 
directors’ remuneration is determined in accordance with their experience and the level of responsibilities assumed. None 
of the directors participate in determining their own remuneration.

 The Remuneration Committee conducted a remuneration review for all executive directors during the financial year.

 The number of Directors whose annual income falls within the following bands is set out as follows:-

Remuneration Bands Executive Directors Non-Executive

RM50,000 and below - 3

RM100,001 – RM150,000 1 1

RM200,001 – RM250,000 1 -

RM450,001 – RM500,000 1 -

RM700,001 – RM750,000 1 -
 
 The aggregated annual remuneration paid or payable to all Directors of the Company are further categorised into the 

following components:-

Fees*
(RM)

Salaries
and other

emoluments
(RM)

Bonuses
(RM)

Benefit-
in-kind

(RM)

EPF and
SOCSO

(RM)
Total
(RM)

Executive Directors 130,000 965,451 310,000 43,450 62,659 1,511,560

Non-Executive Directors 228,000 - - - - 228,000

 * Subject to the approval by shareholders at the AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING 

Continuous learning and training are part of Directors’ development programs. The Directors recognise the needs to attend 
trainings to enable them to discharge their duties effectively.  

All Directors had attended the Mandatory Accreditation Programme previously. During the financial year, all Directors except for 
Datuk Iskandar Dzakurnain Bin Badarudin have attended an in-house training on Enterprise Risk Management.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Director re-election provides an opportunity for shareholders to renew their mandate conferred to the Directors. In this respect, 
the Articles of Association of the Company provides that all directors shall retire by rotation once in every three (3) years or at 
least one-third (1/3) of the Board shall retire but shall be eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting 
(“AGM”).

This requirement is adhered to by the Board in every AGM. Profile of directors, standing for election covering their details of 
profession, meeting attendance, directorships in other public companies and shareholdings in the Group are summarised in the 
Statement Accompanying the Notice of AGM.

SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to provide timely and accurate disclosure of all material information of the Group 
to the shareholders and investors. Where practicable, the Board is prepared to enter into a dialogue with 
institutional shareholders. Currently, information is disseminated through various disclosures and announcements 
made to the Bursa Securities. This information is electronically published at the Bursa Securities website at  
http://www.bursamalaysia.com. The Company also maintains its website at www.melatiehsan.com.my containing corporate and 
investor information, key projects undertaken and news releases for the access of the general public.

The AGM remains the principal forum for dialogue with all shareholders while the Extraordinary General Meetings are held as 
and when required. The Board encourages shareholders to attend the forthcoming AGM and will attend questions raised by the 
shareholders.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is committed to present a balance and understandable assessment of the Group’s financial position and prospects to 
the stakeholders and general public. In presenting the annual financial statements and quarterly announcements of its results, the 
Board assures that the Company uses appropriate accounting policies consistently and estimates are supported by reasonable 
and prudent judgments.

The Board also affirms its responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control for the Group. The effectiveness of the 
system of internal control is reviewed by the management and independently assessed by the internal auditors under the purview 
of the Audit Committee. The internal audit function is currently outsourced to an independent internal audit services company.  
Further information on the Group’s state of internal control is reported in the Statement on Internal Control which is presented 
on page 24.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BEST PRACTICES

Except for the non-disclosure of individual director’s remunerations and the composition requirement of non-executive directors 
in the Audit Committees which was addressed subsequent to the financial year, the Board believes that all material aspects of the 
best practices set out in Part 2 of the Revised Code have been complied with during the financial year.

The Board views that the transparency in respect of the Directors’ remuneration has been reasonably dealt with by the ‘band 
disclosure’ presented in the above. Therefore, the detailed remuneration of each director was excluded in this Statement.

Corporate Governance Statement
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that:-

I. The annual audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company are drawn up in accordance with applicable 
approved accounting standards in Malaysia, the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 and the Listing Requirements of the 
Bursa Securities so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company for the financial year; 
and

II. Proper accounting and other records are kept which enable the preparation of the financial statements with reasonable 
accuracy and taking reasonable steps to ensure that appropriate systems are in place to safeguard the assets of the Group 
and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

 In the preparation of the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 August 2008, the Directors have adopted 
appropriate accounting policies and have applied them consistently in the financial statement with reasonable and prudent 
judgments and estimates. The Directors are also satisfied that all relevant approved accounting standards have been 
followed in the preparation of the financial statements.

Corporate Governance Statement
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ESTABLISHMENT AND COMPOSITION

The Audit Committee of Melati Ehsan Holdings Berhad (the “Company”) was established on 29 January 2007.  For the financial 
year ended 31 August 2008, the Audit Committee (the “Committee”) comprises the following three directors:-

CHAIRMAN
Dato’ Dr. Ku Abd Rahman Bin Ku Ismail   (Independent Non-Executive Chairman) 

MEMBERS
Datuk Alias Bin Ali   (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Lim Tong Hee   (Executive Director)

Subsequent to the financial year ended 31 August 2008, the Board of Directors had reviewed and re-aligned the composition of 
the Audit Committee to be in line with the revised Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance (“Code”) and the amendments to 
the Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”).

Mr. Lim Tong Hee had resigned as a member of the Audit Committee and Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron had been appointed in 
his place thereof effective on 15 January 2009. The Company is now in compliance with the Code and the Listing Requirements of 
Bursa Securities on the composition of the Audit Committee.

TERMS OF REFERENCE

1) Policy

 The policy of the Audit Committee is to ensure that internal and external audit functions are properly conducted and 
that audit recommendations are being carried out effectively by the MELATI EHSAN HOLDINGS BERHAD group of 
companies.

2) Objectives

 The objectives of this policy are:-

2.1)   to assure the shareholders of the Company that the Directors of the Company have complied with Malaysian financial 
standards and required disclosure policies developed and administered by Bursa Securities;

2.2) to ensure consistency with Bursa Securities’ commitment to encourage high standards of corporate disclosure 
and to adopt best practices aimed at maintaining appropriate standards of corporate responsibility, integrity and 
accountability to all the Company’s shareholders; and

2.3) to relieve the full Board of Directors from detailed involvement in the review of the results of internal and external 
audit activities and yet ensure that audit findings are brought to the highest level for consideration.

3) Membership

3.1) The Committee shall be appointed by the Board from amongst the non-executive directors of the Company and shall 
consist of not less than three members, of whom the majority shall be independent.

3.2) The Committee shall include at least one person who is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants or 
alternatively a person who must have at least 3 years’ working experience and have passed the examinations specified 
in Part 1 of the 1st Schedule of the Accountants Act, 1967 or is a member of one of the associations of accountants 
specified in Part II of the said Schedule or alternatively a person who has fulfill such other requirements as prescribed 
by Bursa Securities or approved by Bursa Securities.

3.3) No alternate director shall be appointed as a member of the Committee.

3.4) The members of the Committee shall elect from among their number a chairman who is Non-Executive and 
Independent, as defined above.

3.5) If one or more members of the Committee resign, die or for any other reason cease to be a member with the result 
that the Listing Requirements of the Bursa Securities are breached, the Board shall, within three months of the event, 
appoint such number of new members as may be required to correct the breach.

3.6) The Board shall review the term of office of Committee members no less than once every three years.

Audit Committee Report
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4) Authority

4.1) The Committee is authorised by the Board, in accordance with the procedures to be determined by the Board (if any) 
and at the cost of the Company, to:-

(a) investigate any activity within the Committee’s terms of reference;
(b) have resources which are reasonably required to enable it to perform its duties;
(c) have full and unrestricted access to any information pertaining to the Company or the Group;
(d) have direct communication channels with the external auditors and person(s) carrying out the internal audit 

function or activity (if any);   
(e) obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice and secure the attendance of outsiders with 

relevant experience and expertise if it considers this necessary; and
(f) convene meetings with the external auditors, internal auditors or both, excluding the attendance of the 

executive members of the other directors and employees of the Company, whenever deemed necessary.

5) Functions

5.1) The Audit Committee shall, amongst others, discharge the following functions:-

(A) review the following and report the same to the Board:-

(a) with the external auditors, the scope of the audit and the audit plan;
(b) with the external auditors, their evaluation of the system of internal controls;
(c) with the external auditors, their management letter and the management’s response;
(d) with the external auditors, their audit report;
(e) the assistance given by the employees to the external auditors;
(f) the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources of the internal audit function and that it 

has the necessary authority to carry out its work;
(g) the internal audit programme, processes, the results of the internal audit programme, processes or 

investigation undertaken and whether or not appropriate action is taken on the recommendations of the 
internal audit function;

(h) the quarterly results and year end financial statements, prior to the approval by the Board of Directors, 
focusing particularly on:-

(i) any changes in or implementation of major accounting policy;
(ii) significant adjustments arising from the audit;
(iii) significant and unusual events; 
(iv) the going concern assumption; and
(v) compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements;

(i) any related party transaction and conflict of interest situation that may arise within the Company or the 
group including any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of management 
integrity;

(j) any letter of resignation from the external auditors; and
(k) whether there is reason (supported by grounds) to believe that the external auditors are not suitable for 

re-appointment;

(B)   recommend the nomination of a person or person as external auditors; and

(C)   any other matters as directed by the Board.

6) Overseeing the Internal Audit Function

6.1) The Committee shall establish an internal audit function which is independent of the activities it audits.

6.2) The Committee shall oversee all internal audit functions and is authorized to commission investigations to be 
conducted by internal audit as it deems fit.

6.3) The internal auditor shall report directly to the Committee and shall have direct access to the Chairman of the 
Committee.

6.4) All proposals by management regarding the appointment, transfer or dismissal of the internal auditor shall require the 
prior approval of the Committee.
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7) Quorum for Meetings

7.1) The quorum shall be formed only if there is a majority of members present at the meeting who are independent 
directors.

8) Attendance at Meetings

8.1) The Head of Finance, the Head of Internal Audit, and a representative of the external auditors shall normally attend 
meetings. Other Board members and employees may attend any particular meeting only at the Audit Committee’s 
invitation, specific to the relevant meeting. However, at twice a year the Committee shall meet with the external 
auditors without executive Board members present.

9) Frequency of Meetings

9.1) The Chairman shall call for meetings, to be held not less than four times a year. The external auditors may request a 
meeting if they consider one necessary.

10) Proceedings of Meetings

10.1) A member may at any time and the Secretary shall on the requisition of a member summon a meeting of the Audit 
Committee by giving the members not less than seven days notice thereof unless such requirement is waived.

10.2)  In the absence of the Chairman, the Committee shall appoint one of its members present to chair that meeting.

10.3)  A resolution put to vote shall be decided by a majority of votes of the members present, each member having one 
vote.

11) Reporting Procedures

11.1) The Company Secretary shall be the Secretary of the Committee. He shall record attendance of all members and 
invitees and take minutes to record the proceedings of every meeting of the Committee. All minutes of meetings shall 
be circulated to every member of the Board.

11.2) The Committee shall prepare an annual report to the Board that provides a summary of the activities of the Committee 
and the internal audit function or activity for inclusion in the Company’s annual report.

11.3) The Committee shall assist the Board in preparing the following for publication in the Company’s annual report:-

(a) Statement on the Company’s application of the principles set out in Part 1 of the Malaysian Code on Corporate 
Governance;

(b) Statement on the extent of compliance with the Best Practices in Corporate Governance set out in Part 2 of the 
Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance, specifying reasons for any areas of non-compliance (if any) and the 
alternatives adopted in such areas;

(c) Statement on the Board’s responsibility for preparing the annual audited accounts; and

(d)   Statement about the state of internal control of the Group.

11.4) The Committee may report any breaches of the Listing Requirements, which have not been satisfactorily resolved, to 
the Bursa Securities.

Audit Committee Report
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AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

During the financial year ended 31 August 2008, five (5) meetings were held. The details of Audit Committee’s meetings held and 
attended by the Committee during the financial year are as follows:-

Audit Committee Member No. of Meetings Attended/Held

Chairman
Dato’ Dr Ku Abd Rahman Bin Ku Ismail
(Independent Non-Executive Chairman)

5/5

Members

Datuk Alias Bin Ali
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

5/5

Lim Tong Hee
(Executive Director)

5/5

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED  
31 AUGUST 2008

During the financial year ended 31 August 2008, the activities of the Audit Committee included the following:-

(a) reviewed the unaudited quarterly financial results and announcements of the Company and the Group prior to submission 
to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval;

(b) reviewed the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2007 together with the Audit Report to the 
Committee with the external auditors in relation to the audit and accounting issues noted in the course of the audit of the 
Group’s financial statements as well as new developments on accounting standards and regulatory requirements;

(c) reviewed Audit Committee Report, Corporate Governance Statement and the Statement of Internal Control for the financial 
year 31 August 2007 and recommended its adoption to the Board;

(d) reviewed with the external auditors the Audit Planning Memorandum for the year ended  31 August 2008;

(e) reviewed the assistance and cooperation given by the employees to the external auditors;

(f) considered the nomination of the external auditors for recommendation to the Board for re-appointment and their audit 
fees;

(g) reviewed Group Risk Management Policy and Risk Assessment Framework of the Group prepared by the Internal Auditors;

(h) reviewed internal audit reports prepared by the internal auditors on subsidiary companies;

(i) reviewed with the internal auditors the internal audit plans and the scope of audit for 2008/2009;

(j) reviewed guidelines and procedures for recurrent related party transactions; and 

(k) reviewed revised Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee and recommended its adoption to the Board.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Group outsourced its internal audit function to an independent audit service company and the selected team is independent 
of the activities audited by the external auditors. The internal audit function is to ensure a regular review of the adequacy and 
integrity of the Group’s internal control systems. The internal auditors carry out audit assignments in accordance with the approved 
audit plan. The final audit report containing audit findings and recommendations together with management’s responses thereto 
would be presented to the Audit Committee and forwarded to the management concerned for attention and necessary action. A 
follow-up review would subsequently be performed to determine whether corrective action has been taken.
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The Board of Directors of Melati Ehsan Holdings Berhad acknowledges the importance of the system of internal 
control and recognises that it is their responsibility to maintain a sound system of internal control to safeguard 
the Group’s interests. In this respect, the Board is responsible for identifying the principal business risks, ensuring 
the implementation of appropriate systems to manage these risks and reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the 
Group’s system of internal control. Broadly, the experience of the directors and the management team; the review 
mechanism established in the organisation; and the management review and control constitute the key elements of 
the risk management and internal control frameworks in the Group.

The Group has an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks facing the organization.  
Primarily, the risk management function is driven by the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee comprises 
all executive directors of the Board and appointed key management personnel. The key functions of the Executive 
Committee are to define, refine and formulate strategies, policies and practices to manage the business and risks 
facing the Group. Weekly, the Executive Committee holds meeting to review and monitor the developments in the 
business, progress of on-going projects and financial position and performance of the Group.  

To complement the current risk management processes, the Executive Committee with the assistance and facilitation 
of the internal auditors completed a risk assessment exercise. In this exercise, possible risks that could affect the 
achievement of the Group’s objectives, the controls and mitigating actions were identified and documented. Reports 
on the risk assessment were presented to the Audit Committee for their consideration as part of their reviews of the 
state of internal controls in the organisation.

Independent reviews of system of internal control are essential in order to provide an objective assurance to the 
Board. This review mechanism is currently overseen by the Audit Committee. The presence of the internal audit 
function complements this independent review mechanism and assists the Audit Committee in conducting their 
reviews more effectively. The independent review mechanism also covers the review of financial data and information.  
In this respect, the Audit Committee in consultation with the management and external auditors deliberates the 
integrity of the financial results, annual report and audited financial statements. Significant matters reviewed by the 
Audit Committee are reported to the Board to ensure that all directors are kept abreast of the development of the 
Group and to enable them to perform their duties more effectively.

In making this statement, the Board had considered the Bursa Securities’ Guidance on Statement on Internal Control 
for all subsidiaries. The Board is satisfied that the current state of management control, risk management framework 
and the review mechanism stated in the above are reasonably effective. While inherently, all systems of internal control 
are subject to limitation, the Board recognises that the systems of internal control should be continuously improved 
in line with the evolving business and operating environments. It should also be noted that risk management systems 
and systems of internal control are only designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business 
objectives. Therefore, these systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material 
misstatements, fraud and losses.

Statement on Internal Control
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Directors’ Report

The directors of MELATI EHSAN HOLDINGS BERHAD have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended August 31, 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Company is principally an investment holding company.

The principal activities of the subsidiary companies are disclosed in Note 12 to the Financial Statements.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the activities of the Group and of the Company during the financial 
year.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The results of operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year are as follows:

Group Company

RM RM

Profit before tax 25,664,227 10,680,911

Income tax expense (6,777,772) (2,860,000)

Profit for the year 18,886,455 7,820,911

In the opinion of the directors, the results of operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year have not been 
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

 
DIVIDENDS
        
The first and final dividend of 7.5 sen per ordinary share, less 26% tax, amounting to RM6,660,024, proposed in respect of the 
previous financial year and dealt with in the previous directors’ report, was paid by the Company during the financial year.

The directors proposed a first and final dividend of 5.5 sen per ordinary share, less 25% tax, amounting to RM4,950,018 in respect 
of the current financial year ended August 31, 2008. The dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting of the Company and has not been included as a liability in the financial statements.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS
        
There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than those disclosed in the 
financial statements.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The Company has not issued any new shares or debentures during the financial year.

SHARE OPTIONS

No options have been granted by the Company to any parties during the financial year to take up unissued shares of the 
Company.

No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of any option to take up unissued shares of the 
Company.  As of the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares of the Company under options.
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Directors’ Report

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

Before the income statements and balance sheets of the Group and the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable 
steps: 

(a) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of allowance for 
doubtful debts and had satisfied themselves that there were no known bad debts to be written off and that no allowance 
for doubtful debts was necessary, and

 
(b) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their book values in the ordinary course of business had been 

written down to their estimated realisable values. 

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances: 

(a) which would require the writing off of bad debts or the setting up of allowance for doubtful debts in the financial statements 
of the Group and of the Company; or 

        
(b) which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company 

misleading; or

(c) which have arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of  assets or liabilities of the Group 
and of the Company misleading or inappropriate; or

        
(d) not otherwise dealt with in this report or financial statements which would render any amount stated in the financial 

statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:

(a) any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year which secures 
the liability of any other person; or

(b) any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year. 

No contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve months 
after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and 
of the Company to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

In the opinion of the directors, no item, transaction or event of  a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between 
the end  of the  financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of operations of the Group 
and of the Company for the succeeding financial year.

DIRECTORS

The following directors served on the Board of the Company since the date of the last report:

Dato’ Dr. Ku Abd Rahman Bin Ku Ismail 
Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee 
Ir Tan Hong Hing @ Tan Eng Hing 
Radzulai Bin Yahaya 
Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin Yahya 
Datuk Alias Bin Ali 
Lim Tong Hee 
Datuk Iskandar Dzakurnain Bin Badarudin (resigned on 10.12.2008)

In accordance with Article 126 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Messrs. Dato’ Dr. Ku Abd Rahman Bin Ku Ismail and Tan 
Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for 
re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

The shareholdings in the Company and in related companies of those who were directors at the end of the financial year, as 
recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings kept by the Company under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 1965, are as 
follows:

      Number of ordinary shares of RM0.50 each

Balance as of Balance as of

1.9.2007 Bought Sold 31.8.2008

Shares in the Company

Direct Interest

Ir Tan Hong Hing @ Tan Eng Hing 2,159,359 - - 2,159,359

Dato’ Dr. Ku Abd Rahman Bin Ku Ismail 329,200 - (59,000) 270,200

Lim Tong Hee 70,000 - (50,000) 20,000

Indirect Interest

Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee  59,639,811 - - 59,639,811

Radzulai Bin Yahaya 13,955,075 - - 13,955,075

Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin Yahya 6,829,189 -     (6,829,189) -

By virtue of the interests in the shares of the Company, Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee is deemed to have an interest in the shares 
of all the subsidiary companies to the extent he has interests.

None of the other directors in office as of the end of the financial year held shares in the Company or in related companies during 
the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
        
Since the end of the previous financial year, none of the directors of the Company has received or become entitled to receive any 
benefit (other than those disclosed as directors’ remuneration in the Financial Statements) by reason of a contract made by the 
Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in which 
the director has a substantial financial interest except for any benefits which may be deemed to have arisen by virtue of the related 
party transactions as disclosed in Note 23 to the Financial Statements.

During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangement subsisted to which the Company was a party whereby directors of 
the Company might acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body 
corporate.

AUDITORS
        
The auditors, Messrs. Deloitte KassimChan, have indicated their willingness to continue in office.
        
Signed on behalf of the Board
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors,
           

DATO’ DR. KU ABD RAHMAN      TAN SRI DATO’ YAP SUAN CHEE
BIN KU ISMAIL

Kuala Lumpur,
December 10, 2008

Directors’ Report
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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the financial statements of Melati Ehsan Holdings Berhad, which comprise the balance sheets of the Group and 
of the Company as of August 31, 2008, and the income statements, statements of changes in equity and cash flow statements of 
the Group and of the Company for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
notes, as set out on pages 30 to 62.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board approved accounting standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.  This 
responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying 
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and to report our audit opinion to you, 
as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 and for no other purpose.  We do not assume responsibility 
towards any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  
The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entities’ 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design our audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the Company’s internal 
control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with the Malaysian Accounting Standards 
Board approved accounting standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Group and the Company as of August 31, 2008 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then 
ended.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:

(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company and its 
subsidiary companies have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(b) We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiary companies that have been consolidated with the Company’s 
financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purpose of the preparation of the financial 
statements of the Group and we have received satisfactory information and explanations as required by us for these 
purposes.

 
(c) The auditors’ report on the financial statements of the subsidiary companies did not contain any qualification or any adverse 

comment made under Section 174 (3) of the Act.

DELOITTE KASSIMCHAN      OOI THIAM POH
AF 0080        Partner - 2495/01/10 (J)
Chartered Accountants      Chartered Accountant

December 10, 2008

Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of Melati Ehsan Holdings Berhad 
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
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            Group            Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

Note RM RM RM RM

Revenue 5 208,540,183 173,023,332 11,000,000 11,000,000

Cost of sales 6 (178,381,102) (135,805,435) - -

Gross profit 30,159,081 37,217,897 11,000,000 11,000,000

Investment income from short-term deposits 516,204 415,407 516,204 404,266

Other operating income 732,035 203,216 192,000 -

Administrative expenses (4,735,463) (2,257,015) (563,047) (294,382)

Finance costs 7 (10,592) (3,840) - -

Other operating expenses (997,038) (421,001) (464,246) (117,218)

Realisation of negative goodwill 12 - 3,848,720 - -

Profit before tax 8 25,664,227 39,003,384 10,680,911 10,992,666

Income tax expense 9 (6,777,772) (9,489,245) (2,860,000) (2,970,000)

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders

of the Company 18,886,455 29,514,139 7,820,911 8,022,666

Earnings per ordinary share of RM0.50 each:

Basic (sen) 26 15.74 40.11

Income Statements
for the year ended August 31, 2008

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Balance Sheets
as of August 31, 2008

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

            Group            Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

Note RM RM RM RM

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 10 1,246,972 1,064,871 - -

Land held for property development 11 33,798,612 - - -

Investment in subsidiary companies 12 - - 47,247,717 46,272,717

Goodwill on consolidation 13 506,455 506,455 - -

Long-term project claims receivable 14 67,613,800 21,028,400 - -

103,165,839 22,599,726 47,247,717 46,272,717

Current Assets

Amount due from contract customers 15 26,605,265 49,728,294 - -

Trade receivables 14 48,514,576 65,088,973 - -

Other receivables and prepaid expenses 16 14,816,580 22,243,086 15,000 15,000

Amount owing by subsidiary companies 12 - - 20,425,002 20,850,647

Cash and cash equivalents 25 71,977,547 36,924,672 21,072,536 20,420,363

161,913,968 173,985,025 41,512,538 41,286,010

TOTAL ASSETS 265,079,807 196,584,751 88,760,255 87,558,727

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and Reserves

Issued capital 17 60,000,217 60,000,217 60,000,217 60,000,217

Reserves 18 68,710,623 56,484,192 28,526,138 27,365,251

Total Equity 128,710,840 116,484,409 88,526,355 87,365,468

Non-Current Liabilities

Long-term loan 19 - 19,164,139 - -

Hire purchase payables 20 171,257 93,606 - -

Deferred tax liabilities 21 41,610 28,346 - -

212,867 19,286,091 - -
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            Group            Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

Note RM RM RM RM

Current Liabilities

Amount due to contract customers 15 13,519,790 635,940 - -

Trade payables 22 42,924,117 54,178,454 - -

Other payables, accrued expenses and provisions 22 19,625,119 2,956,023 233,900 193,259

Term loan 19 59,979,604 - - -

Hire-purchase payables 20 107,470 87,505 - -

Tax liabilities - 2,956,329 - -

136,156,100 60,814,251 233,900 193,259

Total Liabilities 136,368,967 80,100,342 233,900 193,259

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 265,079,807 196,584,751 88,760,255 87,558,727

Balance Sheets
as of August 31, 2008

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Statements of Changes in Equity
for the year ended August 31, 2008

Distributable
Non-distributable Reserve Reserve 

 Reverse
Issued Share acquisition Retained

                                                          capital premium reserve earnings Total/Net
Group Note RM RM RM RM RM

Balance as of September 1, 2006 1,000,000 - - 41,590,710 42,590,710
Acquisition of subsidiaries 10,796,796 - - - 10,796,796
Arising from reverse acquisition 34,450,921 - (34,450,921) - -
Public issue of shares 13,752,500 21,453,900 - - 35,206,400
Share issue expenses - (1,623,636) - - (1,623,636)
Total recognised income and expenses:
   Net profit for the year - - - 29,514,139 29,514,139

Balance as of August 31, 2007 60,000,217 19,830,264 (34,450,921) 71,104,849 116,484,409

Balance as of September 1, 2007 60,000,217 19,830,264 (34,450,921) 71,104,849 116,484,409
Total recognised income and expenses:

Net profit for the year - - - 18,886,455 18,886,455
Dividends paid                                    27 - - - (6,660,024) (6,660,024)

Balance as of August 31, 2008 60,000,217 19,830,264 (34,450,921) 83,331,280 128,710,840

Non
-distributable Distributable

 Reserve Reserve 
Retained
earnings/

Issued Share (Accumulated
                                                          capital premium loss) Total
Company Note RM RM RM RM

Balance as of September 1, 2006 2 - (487,679) (487,677)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 46,247,715 - - 46,247,715
Public issue of shares 13,752,500 21,453,900 - 35,206,400
Shares issue expenses - (1,623,636) - (1,623,636)
Total recognised income and expenses:

Net profit for the year - - 8,022,666 8,022,666

Balance as of August 31, 2007 60,000,217 19,830,264 7,534,987 87,365,468

Balance as of September 1, 2007 60,000,217 19,830,264 7,534,987 87,365,468
Total recognised income and expenses:

Net profit for the year - - 7,820,911 7,820,911
Dividends paid                         27 - - (6,660,024) (6,660,024)

Balance as of August 31, 2008 60,000,217 19,830,264 8,695,874 88,526,355

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Cash Flow Statements
for the year ended August 31, 2008

            Group            Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

Note RM RM RM RM

CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax for the year 25,664,227 39,003,384 10,680,911 10,992,666

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 243,818 128,225 - -

Finance costs 134,640 105,657 - -

Interest income (1,197,894) (452,284) (516,204) (404,266)

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (7,103) - - -

Realisation of negative goodwill - (3,848,720) - -

Dividend income - - (11,000,000) (11,000,000)

Operating Profit/(Loss) Before Working Capital Changes 24,837,688 34,936,262 (835,293) (411,600)

(Increase)/Decrease in:

Amount due from contract customers 25,158,846 (10,715,148) - -

Trade receivables and long-term project claims receivable (30,011,003) (43,062,559) - -

Other receivables and prepaid expenses 7,638,504 (7,287,959) - 344,683

Bank balance under joint account 22 46 - -

Amount owing by subsidiary companies - - 425,645 (20,850,647)

Increase/(Decrease) in:

Amount due to contract customers 12,883,850 (948,070) - -

Trade payables (11,254,337) 23,277,044 - -

Other payables and accrued expenses (330,904) (1,829,278) 40,641 (654,103)

Cash Generated From/(Used In) Operations 28,922,666 (5,629,662) (369,007) (21,571,667)

Interest received 40,704 36,877 - -

Income tax paid (9,932,835) (12,642,553) - -

Net Cash From/(Used In) Operating Activities 19,030,535 (18,235,338) (369,007) (21,571,667)

CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property development land (Note (b)) (16,798,612) - - -

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (Note (a)) (232,977) (131,544) - -

Interest received 1,157,190 415,407 516,204 404,266

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 74,161 - - -

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from acquisition of

subsidiary companies - 108,394 - (25,002)

Additional investment in a subsidiary company - - (975,000) -

Dividend received - - 8,140,000 8,030,000

Net Cash (Used In)/From Investing Activities (15,800,238) 392,257 7,681,204 8,409,264
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Cash Flow Statements
for the year ended August 31, 2008

            Group            Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

Note RM RM RM RM

CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of shares - 35,206,400 - 35,206,400

Dividend paid (6,660,024) - (6,660,024) -

Interest paid (10,592) (3,840) - -

Shares issue expenses - (1,623,636) - (1,623,636)

Proceeds from long-term loan 38,655,600 19,031,400 - -

Repayment of hire-purchase payables (162,384) (50,951) - -

Fixed deposits pledged (5,490,862) (1,736,329) - -

Amount deposit into sinking fund trust account (5,691,101) (1,622,203) - -

Net Cash From/(Used In) Financing Activities 20,640,637 49,200,841 (6,660,024) 33,582,764

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23,870,934 31,357,760 652,173 20,420,361

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 33,565,179 2,207,419 20,420,363 2

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 25 57,436,113 33,565,179 21,072,536 20,420,363

Note: 
(a) During the financial year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment through the following arrangements:

             Group

2008 2007

RM RM

Total costs of property, plant and equipment acquired 492,977 271,544

Less: Acquisition via hire-purchase arrangements (260,000) (140,000)

Cash payments 232,977 131,544

(b) During the financial year, the Group acquired land held for property development through the following arrangements:

             Group

2008 2007

RM RM

Total costs of property development land 33,798,612 -

Less: Amount owing to vendor (Note 22) (17,000,000) -

Cash payments 16,798,612 -

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
 
 The Company is principally an investment holding company.

 The principal activities of the subsidiary companies are disclosed in Note 12.

 There have been no significant changes in the nature of the activities of the Group and of the Company during the year.

 The Company’s registered office and principal place of business are located at No. 5, Jalan Titiwangsa, 53200 Kuala 
Lumpur.

 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company were approved and authorised by the Board of Directors for 
issuance on December 10, 2008.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1965 and the applicable Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) approved accounting standards 
in Malaysia.  

 Changes in Accounting Policies

 On September 1, 2007, the Group and the Company adopted all the new and revised Financial Reporting Standards (“FRSs”) 
issued by MASB that are relevant to their operations and effective for financial periods beginning on or after September 1, 
2007 as follows:

 FRS 107 Cash Flow Statements
 FRS 111 Construction Contracts
 FRS 112 Income Taxes
 FRS 117 Leases
 FRS 118 Revenue
 FRS 124 Related Party Disclosures
 
 The adoption of these new/revised FRSs has not resulted in significant changes in the accounting policies of the Group and 

does not have any material financial effect on the results of the Group for the current and prior financial years.
 
 Accounting Standards Issued But Not Effective
 
 As of the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the following new/revised FRSs which are relevant to the 

operations of the Group and of the Company were in issue but not yet effective: 

(a) FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

 FRS 139 is effective for accounting period beginning on or after January 1, 2010. The Group and the Company will apply this 
standard for the financial year beginning on September 1, 2010.

 By virtue of the exemption in paragraph 103AB of FRS 139, the impact of applying FRS 139 on the financial statements 
upon first adoption of this standard as required by paragraph 30(6) of FRS 108, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors are not disclosed.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
  
 Basis of Accounting
 
 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

 Basis of Consolidation

 The consolidated financial statements include the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies 
made up to August 31, 2008 as disclosed in Note 12.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

 Subsidiary companies are consolidated using the acquisition method of accounting. On acquisition, the assets and liabilities 
of the relevant subsidiary companies are measured at their fair values at the date of acquisition. 

 The results of subsidiary companies acquired or disposed off during the financial year are included in the consolidated 
financial statements from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal.

 All significant intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation.

 Revenue

 Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group 
and the Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

(i) Construction contracts

 Revenue relating to construction contracts is recognised based on the percentage of completion method as 
determined by the construction costs incurred for work performed to-date against the total estimated construction 
costs where the outcome of the contracts can be reliably estimated.

 
(ii) Rental income

 Revenue from rental of machineries is recognised upon performance and acceptance of services rendered.

(iii)  Sales of trading inventories

 Revenue from sales of trading inventories is recognised upon delivery of products and customer acceptance and 
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have passed to the buyer. 

(iv) Dividend income

 Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

 Income Tax  

 The charge for current tax is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are non-assessable or disallowed. 
It is calculated using the tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted as of the balance sheet date.

 Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising from 
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax 
basis used in the computation of taxable income. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be 
available against which deductible temporary differences, unutilised tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. Such 
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences arise from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other 
than in a business combination) of an asset or liability in a transaction which affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting 
profit.

 At each balance sheet date, the Group re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets and the carrying amount of deferred 
tax assets. The Group recognises a previously unrecognised deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become probable 
that future taxable income will be available against which the deferred tax asset can be utilised.

 
 Employee Benefits

 Salaries, wages, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are accrued in the period in which the associated services are rendered 
by employees of the Group.

 The Group makes monthly statutory contributions to Employees’ Provident Fund (“EPF”), a statutory defined contribution 
plan for all its eligible employees. The contributions, calculated at certain prescribed rates, are charged to the income 
statements.

 Goodwill on Consolidation

 Goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiary company represents the excess of cost of acquisition over the Group’s 
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities, and is initially recognised 
as an asset at cost and subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 
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 For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”) expected 
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.  CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment 
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.  If the recoverable amount of the 
CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any 
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis of the carrying amount of each 
asset in the unit.  An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

 On disposal of a subsidiary company, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the gain or 
loss on disposal.

 Negative Goodwill 

 The excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities 
over cost of acquisitions is recognised immediately in the income statements.

 Land Held for Property Development
        
 Land held for property development consists of land purchased for development and costs incurred thereon, on which no 

significant development work has been undertaken or where development activities are not expected to be completed 
within the normal operating cycle. Such land is classified as non-current asset and is stated at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses.

 Cost associated with the acquisition of land includes the purchase price of the land, professional fees, stamp duties, 
conversion fees and other relevant levies. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the asset is 
assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

 Land held for property development is transferred to property development costs (under current assets) where development 
activities have commenced and where the development activities are expected to be completed within the normal operating 
cycle.

 Impairment of Assets Excluding Goodwill 

 At each balance sheet date, the Group and the Company review the carrying amounts of the non-current assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, 
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where 
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group and the Company estimate the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

 Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

 If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be lower than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the income statements.

 When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of 
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in the income statements.

 Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

 Gain or loss arising from the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset, and is recognised in the income statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is computed on the straight line method to write-off the cost of various 
assets after netting off the residual value over their estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Computer 20 - 25%

Office equipment 10 - 15%

Furniture and fittings 10%

Motor vehicles 10%

 At each balance sheet date, the residual values, useful lives and depreciation method of the property, plant and equipment 
are reviewed, and the effects of any changes are recognised prospectively.

 Property, Plant and Equipment Acquired Under Hire-Purchase Arrangements

 Property, plant and equipment acquired under hire-purchase arrangements are capitalised in the financial statements and 
the corresponding obligations are treated as liabilities. Finance charges are allocated to the income statements to give a 
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining hire-purchase liabilities.

 Investment in Subsidiary Companies

 Investment in subsidiary companies, which is eliminated on consolidation, is stated at cost in the Company’s financial 
statements. Where there is an indication of impairment in the value of the assets, the carrying amount of the assets is 
assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

 Interest in Joint Ventures

 The Group’s interest in joint ventures are undertaken through unincorporated joint ventures. Unincorporated joint ventures 
are joint ventures that do not involve the establishment of a corporation, partnership, or other entity, or a financial structure 
that is separate from the ventures themselves.

 The Group’s interest in unincorporated joint ventures have been brought to account by incorporating the Group’s 
proportionate share of assets employed, and liabilities incurred by the joint ventures and their proportionate share of 
income and expenses in relation to joint ventures in their respective classification categories in the financial statements.

 Construction Contracts

 When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and contract costs are recognised 
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date, as measured by the proportion 
that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs. Variations in contract 
work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they have been agreed with the customers.

 When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of 
contract costs incurred that are probable of recovery. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they 
are incurred.

 When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an 
expense immediately as an allowance for foreseeable loss.

 Amount due from contract customers represents the excess of contract costs incurred todate and portion of profit or loss 
attributable to work performed todate over progress billings while amount due to contract customers represents the excess 
of progress billings over contract costs incurred todate and portion of profit or loss attributable to work performed todate.

 Related parties 

 Related parties are entities with common direct or indirect shareholder and/or directors. Parties are considered to be 
related if one party has ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making 
financial and operating decisions.
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 Provisions

 Provisions are made when the Group and the Company have a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and when a reliable 
estimate of the amount can be made.

 Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision 
is reversed to the income statements.

 Contingent Liabilities 

 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past event and whose existence will only be confirmed by the 
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group and the Company. It can also 
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic 
resources will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

 A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the 
probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

 Financial Instruments

 Financial instruments are recognised in the balance sheets when the Group or the Company have become a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

 Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual agreement. 
Interest, dividends and gains and losses relating to a financial instrument classified as a liability, are reported as expense 
or income. Distributions to holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity. Financial 
instruments are offset when the Group and the Company have a legally enforceable right to offset and intend to settle 
either on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(i) Receivables

 Trade and other receivables are stated at nominal value as reduced by the appropriate allowances for estimated 
irrecoverable amounts. Allowance for doubtful debts is made based on estimate of possible losses which may arise 
from non-collection of certain receivable accounts.

(ii) Payables

 Trade and other payables are stated at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for 
goods and services received.

(iii) Interest bearing loans and borrowings

 Interest bearing bank loans are recorded at the amount of proceeds received, net of directly attributable transaction 
costs.

(iv) Equity instruments

 Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which 
they are declared.

 The transaction costs of an equity transaction, other than in the context of a business combination, are accounted for 
as a deduction from equity, net of tax. Equity transaction costs comprise only those incremental external costs directly 
attributable to the equity transaction which would otherwise have been avoided.  

 Financial Assets

 The Group’s principal financial assets are trade and other receivables, fixed deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

 Financial Liabilities

 Debts and equity instruments are classified in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

 The Group’s significant financial liabilities are trade and other payables and bank borrowings.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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 Borrowing Costs

 Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs are 
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except for borrowing costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset which will be capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. 
A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. 
Capitalisation of borrowing costs will cease when the assets are ready for their intended use or sale.

 Cash Flow Statements

 The Group and the Company adopt the indirect method in the preparation of the cash flow statements.

 Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition 
and are readily convertible to cash with insignificant risk of changes in value.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(a) Critical Judgements in Applying the Accounting Policies
 

 The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving estimations (see below), that management has 
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have significant effects on the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements. 

(i) Revenue recognition on construction contracts

 Note 3 describes the revenue recognition and the use of percentage-of-completion method for construction 
contracts. The percentage-of-completion method requires the Group to make reasonably dependable estimates 
of progress towards completion of contracts. If the Group were unable to make reasonably dependable 
estimates, the Group would not recognise any profit before a contract is completed, but would recognise a loss 
as soon as the loss becomes evident. 

 
(ii) Revenue recognition on variation orders

 The Group’s revenue is substantially billed under fixed price contracts. Variation orders are commonly billed to 
customers in the normal course of business and these are recognised to the extent they have been agreed with 
the customers and can be reasonably estimated. 

 
(b) Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

 Management believes that there are no key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key sources of 
estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year other than the matters disclosed below.

(i) Percentage-of-completion of projects

 In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, estimates and assumptions 
have been made by management including costs to complete projects, an assessment of percentage-of-
completion of projects, recognition of revenue in respect of variation orders, recoverability of amount due 
from contract customers and allowances necessary for trade and other receivables, recoverability of deposits 
paid to third parties for contracts to be secured. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates. 

(ii)  Estimated Impairment of Goodwill

 The Group tests goodwill for impairment annually in accordance with its accounting policy. More regular reviews 
are performed if events indicate that this is necessary.

 Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit 
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future 
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate 
present value. The carrying amount of goodwill at the balance sheet date was RM506,455 and no impairment 
loss was recognised during the financial year.
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5. REVENUE

 An analysis of revenue is as follow:
 

            Group            Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

RM RM RM RM

Construction contracts 198,564,925 172,746,361 - -
Gross dividends from subsidiary companies (Note 12) - - 11,000,000 11,000,000
Sales of trading inventories and rental of machineries 9,975,258 276,971 - -

208,540,183 173,023,332 11,000,000 11,000,000

6. COST OF SALES
 

            Group
2008 2007

RM RM

Construction contracts (Note 15) 166,419,091 135,528,464
Purchase of trading inventories 11,240,877 -
Rental of machineries 721,134        276,971

178,381,102 135,805,435

7. FINANCE COSTS

            Group
2008 2007

RM RM

Interest expense on:
Hire-purchase 10,592 3,840
Bank overdraft 124,048 101,817

134,640 105,657
Less: Amount reimbursable from subcontractor (124,048) (101,817)

10,592 3,840
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

a) Profit before tax is arrived at after (charging)/crediting:

            Group            Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

RM RM RM RM

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (243,818) (128,225) - -

Audit fee

- Current (118,000) (95,000) (25,000) (20,000)

- (Under)/Overprovision in prior year - (19,150) - 500

Rental of premises payable to a related party (Note 23) (60,000) (15,000) (60,000) (15,000)

Incorporation fee - (1,800) - -

Interest income 1,197,894 452,284 516,204 404,266

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7,103 - - -

Management fee charged to subsidiary companies

 (Note 23) - - 192,000 -

Management fee payable to subsidiary companies

 (Note 23) - - (120,000) (120,000)

b) Remunerations of key management personnel comprise the following:
 

            Group            Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

RM RM RM RM

Directors of the Company

Executives:

Fee 186,000 113,000 130,000 65,000

Salaries and other emoluments 1,338,112 541,400 - -

Benefits-in-kind 43,450 32,000 - -

Total 1,567,562 686,400 130,000 65,000

Non-executives:

Fee 228,000 84,000 228,000 84,000

Total 1,795,562 770,400 358,000 149,000

c) Staff costs

             Group              Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

RM RM RM RM

Salaries, wages, bonuses and allowances 2,365,961 890,017 - -

Contributions to EPF 249,341 93,603 - -

Other employee benefits 323,474 141,880 - -

2,938,776 1,125,500 - -
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

            Group            Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

RM RM RM RM

Estimated current tax payable:

Current tax expenses 6,707,000 9,473,000 2,860,000 2,970,000

Deferred taxation (Note 21) 13,264 10,413 - -

6,720,264 9,483,413 2,860,000 2,970,000

Underprovision of income tax in prior year 57,508 5,832 - -

6,777,772 9,489,245 2,860,000 2,970,000
 

 The reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory income tax rate to that of the 
effective income tax rate of the Group and the Company is as follows:

            Group            Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

RM RM RM RM

Profit before tax 25,664,227 39,003,384 10,680,911 10,992,666

Taxation at Malaysian statutory rate of:

- the first RM500,000 profit at 20% (2007: 20%) 100,000 100,000 - -

- on subsequent profit at 26% (2007: 27%) 6,542,699 10,395,913 2,777,037 2,963,970

Tax effects of:

Income not subject to tax - (1,039,154) - -

Expenses not tax deductible 76,165 25,392 82,963 6,030

Deferred tax assets not recognised 1,400 1,262 - -

Taxation at the effective tax rate 6,720,264 9,483,413 2,860,000 2,970,000

Underprovision in prior year 57,508 5,832 - -

Tax expense for the year 6,777,772 9,489,245 2,860,000 2,970,000
 
 As mentioned in Note 3, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets 

are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is 
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax credits 
and unused tax losses can be utilised. As of August 31, 2008, the amount of net deferred tax assets of certain subsidiaries, 
calculated at the applicable statutory income tax rates and which has not been recognised in the financial statements, is as 
follows:

 

            Group

          Deferred Tax Assets

2008 2007

RM RM

Tax effects of unused tax losses 2,662 1,262

Net 2,662 1,262
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Furniture

Office and Motor

Computer equipment fittings vehicles Total

Group RM RM RM RM RM

Cost

At September 1, 2006 116,290 13,968 13,461  1,395,265 1,538,984

Additions 92,670 6,230 2,500    170,144 271,544

Acquisition of subsidiary companies 14,260 14,778 1,302 333,014 363,354

At August 31, 2007/September 1, 2007 223,220 34,976 17,263 1,898,423 2,173,882

Additions 38,842 30,990 5,033     418,112 492,977

Disposal - - -      (83,822) (83,822)

At August 31, 2008 262,062 65,966 22,296  2,232,713 2,583,037

Accumulated Depreciation

At September 1, 2006 116,290 9,224 6,717     484,326 616,557

Charge for the year 20,820 3,703 1,596     178,743 204,862

Acquisition of subsidiary companies 6,177 5,302 1,300    274,813 287,592

At August 31, 2007/September 1, 2007 143,287 18,229 9,613   937,882 1,109,011

Charge for the year 30,719 8,648 2,099    202,352 243,818

Disposal - - -     (16,764) (16,764)

At August 31, 2008 174,006 26,877 11,712 1,123,470 1,336,065

Net Book Value

At August 31, 2007 79,933 16,747 7,650     960,541 1,064,871

At August 31, 2008 88,056 39,089 10,584 1,109,243 1,246,972

(i) Included in property, plant and equipment of the Group are property, plant and equipment acquired under hire-
purchase arrangements with net book values as follows:

 

           Group

           Net Book Value 

2008 2007

RM RM

Motor vehicles 415,049 313,742
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(ii) Included in cost of property, plant and equipment of the Group are the following fully depreciated assets which are 
still in use as follows:

            Group

2008 2007

RM RM

Motor vehicles 293,014 293,014

Computer, office equipment, furniture and fittings 138,069 117,592

(iii) During the financial year, depreciation expenses are charged to the following:

            Group

2008 2007

RM RM

Income statements 243,818 128,225

Construction costs (Note 15) - 76,637

243,818 204,862

(iv) Included in property, plant and equipment of the Group are property, plant and equipment registered in the name of 
a director of the Group which are held in trust by the said director for the Group:

            Group

           Net Book Value 

2008 2007

RM RM

Motor vehicles 555,535 658,612

11. LAND HELD FOR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 

Group

2008

RM

Cost at beginning of year -

Addition:

Leasehold land at cost 32,000,000

Development expenditure 1,798,612

Cost at end of year 33,798,612
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12. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

           Company

2008 2007

RM RM

Unquoted shares, at cost

At beginning of year 46,272,717 -

Additional investment in a subsidiary company 975,000 -

Acquisition of subsidiary companies during the year - 46,272,717

At end of year 47,247,717 46,272,717

 Amount owing by subsidiary companies mainly arose from advances and payment made on behalf, which is unsecured, 
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

 Details of the subsidiaries, all of which are incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows:

Equity Interest

2008 2007 Principal

Name of Company % % Activity

Bayu Melati Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Turnkey contractor

Pembinaan Kery Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Turnkey contractor

Melati Ehsan Trading Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Trading of construction materials and rental of 
machineries

Melati Ehsan Consolidated Sdn. Bhd. 100 100 Property development and turnkey contractor

 During the financial year, the Company subscribed for an additional of 975,000 new ordinary shares of RM1 each in Melati 
Ehsan Consolidated Sdn. Bhd. (“MECSB”), a wholly-owned subsidiary company, at a consideration of RM975,000. MECSB 
continues to be a wholly-owned subsidiary company of the Company as a result of this exercise.

 In 2007, the Company acquired the entire equity interest in Bayu Melati Sdn. Bhd. (“BMSB”) and Pembinaan Kery Sdn. Bhd. 
(“PKSB”) via the issuance of 70,901,838 and 21,593,592 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each respectively.

 Upon completion of the acquisition of BMSB and PKSB, the Company became the legal holding company of BMSB and 
PKSB. Due to the relative values of BMSB, PKSB and the Company, the former shareholders of BMSB became the majority 
shareholders through the issuance of 70,901,838 new ordinary shares of RM0.50 each in the Company, controlling about 
77% of the share capital of the Company. In addition, the Company’s continuing operations and executive management are 
those of BMSB. Accordingly, the substance of the business combination is that BMSB acquired the Company in a reverse 
acquisition and subsequently, the combined entity of the Company and BMSB acquired the equity interest in PKSB.

 The cost of the business combination was determined in accordance with FRS 3, Business Combination, on the basis of the 
fair value of the Company as of January 3, 2007 and the number of new ordinary shares that BMSB would have had to issue 
to the shareholders of the Company to provide the same percentage ownership of the combined entity.

 Due to the application of Financial Reporting Standard 3, Business Combination (“FRS 3”) rules relating to reverse acquisition, 
BMSB became the acquirer of the Group for accounting purposes. 
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 Apart from the above, in 2007, the Company acquired the entire equity interest in Melati Ehsan Trading Sdn. Bhd., comprising 
2 ordinary shares of RM1 each and MECSB comprising 25,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each, for a cash consideration of RM2 
and RM25,000 respectively.

 In 2007, the net assets acquired in the above acquisitions are as follows:

Book Fair Value Fair Value on

Value Adjustments Acquisition

                                                       Note RM RM RM

Property, plant and equipment 10 75,762 - 75,762

Amount due from contract customers 3,101,151 - 3,101,151

Trade receivables 26,057,031 - 26,057,031

Other receivables, deposits and prepaid expenses 5,507,837 - 5,507,837

Cash and cash equivalents 133,396 - 133,396

Amount due to contract customers (1,494,165) - (1,494,165)

Trade payables (12,653,920) - (12,653,920)

Other payables and accrued expenses (4,499,596) - (4,499,596)

Tax liabilities (2,061,000) - (2,061,000)

Deferred tax liabilities (2,433) - (2,433)

 

Net assets acquired 14,164,063 - 14,164,063

Goodwill on acquisition                   13 506,455

Negative goodwill on acquisition      (3,848,720)

Total purchase consideration 10,821,798

Purchase consideration satisfied by issuance of new ordinary shares (10,796,796)

Portion satisfied by cash 25,002

Cash and cash equivalents acquired (133,396)

Net cash inflow on acquisition (108,394)

 During the financial year, significant transactions undertaken by the Company which are determined on a basis as negotiated 
with its subsidiary companies are as follows:

           Company

2008 2007

RM RM

Dividend income (Note 5) 11,000,000 11,000,000

Management fee payable to subsidiary companies 120,000 120,000

Management fee charged to subsidiary companies (192,000) -



Annual Report 2008

49

Notes to the Financial Statements

13. GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION

           Group 

2008 2007

RM RM

At beginning of year 506,455 -

Reverse acquisition - 487,677

Acquisition of subsidiaries - 18,778

At end of year 506,455 506,455

 Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) that is 
expected to benefit from the business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill of RM506,455 had been allocated 
mainly to the construction division as an independent CGU. 

 The Group test goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be 
impaired.

 The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined from value-in-use, calculation which uses cash flow projections derived 
from the most recent financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period, and an estimated discount 
rate of 6.75% per annum and an average growth rate of 10% per annum.

 During the financial year, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill and determined that goodwill was not 
impaired.

14. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND LONG-TERM PROJECT CLAIMS RECEIVABLE
 

                   Group 

2008 2007

RM RM

Trade receivables 43,527,847 55,224,388

Retention sums (Note 15) 4,986,729 9,864,585

48,514,576 65,088,973

Long-term project claims receivable 67,613,800 21,028,400

 Trade receivables comprise mainly amounts receivable from customers in respect of progress billings made with regards to 
construction contracts undertaken.

 Other than the Bertam Project as mentioned below, the credit period granted on construction contracts of the Group 
ranges from 30 to 90 (2007 : 30 to 90) days. However, extension of the credit period is assessed and approved on a case by 
case basis.

 Long-term project claims receivable represents receivable from the contract customer, Jabatan Pengairan Dan Saliran 
Malaysia (“JPS”) in respect of the Bertam Project. Pursuant to an agreement made in 2007 among JPS, Bank Pembangunan 
Malaysia Berhad and Pembinaan Kery Sdn. Bhd., a subsidiary company of the Company, the fundings for the construction 
works of the Bertam Project are by way of the long-term loan facilities as mentioned in Note 19. Also, in accordance with 
the said agreement, the settlement of the long-term project claims receivable will be made upon the full completion of the 
Bertam Project. Subsequent to the financial year, the completion date for the Bertam Project is expected to be extended 
beyond the next financial year due to the request of JPS.

 Included in trade receivables and retention sums, are amounts totalling RM24,777,577 (2007 : RM43,971,290) arising from 
related party transactions as disclosed under Note 23.
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15. AMOUNT DUE FROM CONTRACT CUSTOMERS

                      Group

2008 2007

RM RM

Contract costs 583,645,600 424,385,403

Profit attributable to works performed to date 169,580,203 139,806,826

753,225,803 564,192,229

Elimination due to completion of projects (12,726,362) (11,865,448)

Total 740,499,441 552,326,781

Progress billings received and receivable (740,140,328) (515,099,875)

Elimination due to completion of projects    12,726,362 11,865,448

(727,413,966) (503,234,427)

13,085,475 49,092,354

Represented by:

Amount due from contract customers 26,605,265 49,728,294

Amount due to contract customers (13,519,790) (635,940)

13,085,475 49,092,354

Contract costs recognised as an expense during the year (Note 6) 166,419,091 135,528,464

Retention sums on contracts, included under trade receivables (Note 14) 4,986,729 9,864,585

Retention sums on contracts, included under trade payables (Note 22) 16,627,643 6,511,304

Current year charges to contract costs include the following:

- Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 10) - 76,637

- Staff costs - 299,474

- Borrowing costs 2,159,865 132,739
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16. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAID EXPENSES

                      Group                                Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

RM RM RM RM

Advances to subcontractors 12,775,163 7,819,399 - -

Other receivables 1,568,730 8,530,208 - -

Tax recoverable 211,998 - - -

Prepaid expenses 166,069 818,069 - -

Refundable deposits 94,620 5,075,410 15,000 15,000

14,816,580 22,243,086 15,000 15,000

 Advances granted by the Group to the third party subcontractors is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of 
repayment. 

 Included in other receivables of the Group are advances made to third parties for potential joint venture projects amounting 
to RMNil (2007 : RM7,500,000).

 Included in refundable deposits of the Group are downpayment made for the purchase of the vacant land as mentioned in 
Note 29 amounting to RMNil (2007 : RM5,000,000) and RM15,000 (2007 : RM15,000) arising from related party transactions 
as disclosed in Note 23.

 The details of the related party transactions are disclosed in Note 23.

17. SHARE CAPITAL

                   Company

2008 2007

RM RM

 Authorised:

  Ordinary shares of RM0.50 each:

    At beginning of year 100,000,000 100,000

    Created during the year - 99,900,000

At end of year 100,000,000 100,000,000

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of RM0.50 each:

At beginning of year 60,000,217 2

Issued during the year - 60,000,215

At end of year 60,000,217 60,000,217
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 In 2007:

(a) pursuant to an Extraordinary General Meeting held on December 29, 2006, the authorised share capital of the 
Company was increased from RM100,000 comprising 200,000 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each to RM100,000,000 
comprising 200,000,000 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each by the creation of an additional 199,800,000 new ordinary 
shares of RM0.50 each;

(b) the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company was increased from RM2 comprising 4 ordinary shares of RM0.50 
each to RM60,000,217, comprising 120,000,434 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each by the issue and allotment of:

(i) 70,901,838 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each pursuant to the acquisition of Bayu Melati Sdn. Bhd.;

(ii) 21,593,592 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each pursuant to the acquisition of Pembinaan Kery Sdn. Bhd.; and

(iii) 27,505,000 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each at an issue price of RM1.28 per ordinary share as public issue. The 
resulting premium of RM21,453,900 was credited to the share premium account.

18. RESERVES
  

                      Group                    Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

RM RM RM RM

Non-distributable Reserves:

Share premium 19,830,264 19,830,264 19,830,264 19,830,264

Reverse acquisition reserve (34,450,921) (34,450,921) - -

Distributable Reserves:

Retained earnings 83,331,280 71,104,849      8,695,874 7,534,987

68,710,623 56,484,192    28,526,138 27,365,251

Share Premium

 Share premium arose from the public issue of 27,505,000 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each at a premium of RM0.78 per share 
in 2007, net of shares issue expenses of RM1,623,636.

Reverse Acquisition Reserve

 Reverse acquisition reserve arose from the reverse acquisition of the Company by Bayu Melati Sdn. Bhd. (“BMSB”) during 
the previous financial year, as follows:

                         

Group

2007

RM

Paid-up share capital of the Company immediately before reverse acquisition 2

Shares issued by the Company to acquire Bayu Melati Sdn. Bhd. 35,450,919

Reversal of BMSB’s paid-up share capital pursuant to reverse acquisition (1,000,000)

Adjustment taken to reverse acquisition reserve 34,450,921

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Retained Earnings

 The Malaysian Budget 2008 introduced a single tier company income tax system with effect from year of assessment 2008. 
As such, the Section 108 tax credit as at December 31, 2007 will be available to the Company until such time the credit is 
fully utilised or upon expiry of the six-year transitional period on December 31, 2013, whichever is earlier.

 As of August 31, 2008, the Company did not opt to disregard the Section 108 tax credit and the Company may utilise the 
Section 108 tax credit balance which has been frozen as at December 31, 2007 to frank dividend payments during the six-
year transitional period. The Company has, subject to agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, sufficient tax credit under 
Section 108 of the Income Tax Act, 1967 to frank the payment of net dividends out of its entire retained earnings as of 
August 31, 2008.

19. LONG-TERM LOAN

In 2007, Pembinaan Kery Sdn. Bhd.(“PKSB”), a subsidiary company of the Company, obtained a long-term loan facility of 
RM152,844,038 from Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad (“BPMB”) to finance the entire construction cost of its Flood 
Mitigation Project in Bertam, Kepala Batas, Pulau Pinang (“Bertam Project”).

The long-term loan is repayable as follows:

a) first repayment of RM110 million to be made one month after the construction completion date of the Bertam 
Project as stipulated in the certificate of practical completion, or no later than 24 months from the date of the first 
disbursement, whichever is earlier; and 

 
b) the remaining to be made no later than twenty four (24) months after the first repayment date or no later than forty-

eight (48) months from the date of the first disbursement, which ever is earlier.

The long-term loan is secured by:

a) the facility agreement; 

b) an assignment of all contract proceeds in respect of the main contract entered into by PKSB - Pertubuhan Peladang 
Kawasan Lahar Bubu (“PPKLB”) Joint Venture in relation to the Bertam Project;  

c) Power of Attorney or a Deed of Absolute Assignment of Rights to be executed by PPKLB to PKSB;  

d) corporate guarantee by the Company; and 

e) negative covenant whereby, PKSB, shall not incur additional indebtedness without prior consent from BPMB.

 The term loan principal released to the Group as at August 31, 2008 amounted to RM59,979,604 (2007 : RM19,164,139) and 
bore interest at a rate of 6% (2007 : 6%) per annum.

 During the financial year, the long-term loan has been reclassified to current liabilities in accordance with the repayment 
terms as mentioned above. The Group is currently negotiating with BPMB to extend the repayment terms of the loan to be 
in line with the construction progress of the Bertam Project.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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20. HIRE-PURCHASE PAYABLES
  

                      Group

2008 2007

RM RM

Total instalments outstanding 295,388 191,989

Less: Interest-in-suspense (16,661) (10,878)

Principal outstanding 278,727 181,111

Less: Portion due within the next twelve months (shown under current liabilities) (107,470) (87,505)

Non-current portion 171,257 93,606

The non-current portion is repayable as follows:

Financial years ending:

  2009 - 46,780

  2010 110,425 46,826

  2011 60,832 -

171,257 93,606

 It is the Group’s policy to acquire certain of its property, plant and equipment under hire-purchase arrangements. The 
average term for hire-purchase is 3 years. The hire-purchase payables of the Group bear interest ranging from 4.62% to 
5.11% (2007 : 4.62% to 5.11%) per annum.

21.     DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
 

                      Group

2008 2007

RM RM

At beginning of year         28,346 15,500

Acquisition of subsidiaries                 - 2,433

Transfer to income statements (Note 9)         13,264 10,413

At end of year        41,610 28,346

 The deferred tax liabilities are in respect of the tax effects of temporary differences arising from property, plant and 
equipment.
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22. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND PROVISIONS  

i) Trade payables

                      Group

2008 2007

RM RM

Trade payables 26,296,474 47,667,150

Retention sums payable (Note 15) 16,627,643 6,511,304

Total 42,924,117 54,178,454

 Trade payables arose from trade purchases, renting of machinery and ongoing work-in-progress. The average credit 
period granted to the Group ranges from 30 to 90 (2007 : 30 to 90) days.

 The details of related party transactions are disclosed in Note 23.

ii) Other payables, accrued expenses and provisions:
 

                      Group                    Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

RM RM RM RM

Other payables 17,071,976 139,455 - 58,955

Accrued expenses 2,553,143 2,816,568 233,900 134,304

19,625,119 2,956,023 233,900 193,259
 
 Other payables and accrued expenses comprise mainly accruals made in respect of construction costs incurred and 

amount owing to the vendor of a parcel of property development land purchased during the year.

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

 Other than as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the related parties and their relationship with the Company 
and its subsidiary companies are as follows:

Name of Related Parties Relationship

a) DSB Development Sdn. Bhd. Company in which Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee and Radzulai Bin Yahaya, 
the directors of the Company are also directors and shareholders.

b) Bonus Focus (M) Sdn. Bhd. Company in which Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee and Radzulai Bin 
Yahaya, the directors of the Company, and Zaitun Binti Dato’ Seri 
Abu Bakar, director of a subsidiary company, are also directors and 
shareholders.

c) Maris Development Sdn. Bhd. Company in which Radzulai Bin Yahaya, the director of the Company 
is also a director.

d) Melati Ehsan Development Sdn. Bhd. Company in which Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin Yahya, the director of the 
Company is also a director and Radzulai Bin Yahaya, Tan Sri Dato’ 
Yap Suan Chee, the directors of the Company are also directors and 
shareholders.
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Name of Related Parties Relationship

e) Mega Legacy (M) Sdn. Bhd. Company in which Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee and Ir Tan Hong Hing 
@ Tan Eng Hing, the directors of the Company are also directors and 
shareholders, and Zaitun Binti Dato’ Seri Abu Bakar, director of a 
subsidiary company, is also a director and a shareholder.

f) Konsortium Syarikat Bina Darulaman Berhad
- Pembinaan Kery Sdn. Bhd. 

Joint venture of Pembinaan Kery Sdn. Bhd.,  a subsidiary company of 
the Company.

g) Konsortium Melati Ehsan (M) Sdn. Bhd. 
- Desa Purnama Sdn. Bhd.

Joint venture of Melati Ehsan (M) Sdn. Bhd., a company in which Tan Sri 
Dato’ Yap Suan Chee, Radzulai Bin Yahaya, directors of the Company, 
and Zaitun Binti Dato’ Seri Abu Bakar, director of a subsidiary company, 
are also directors and shareholders.

Included in the following balance sheets items of the Group are amounts owing by/(to) related parties:
 

   Group

2008 2007

RM RM

Trade receivables * 24,777,577 43,971,290

Other receivables, deposits and prepaid expenses # 15,000 15,000

 These outstanding amounts owing by/(to) related parties are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed term of 
repayments.

 * Included in trade receivables and retention sum balances are amounts owing by the following related parties: 

  Group

2008 2007

RM RM

Related parties:

Melati Ehsan Development Sdn. Bhd. 20,814,509 37,470,665

Bonus Focus (M) Sdn. Bhd. 3,539,388 4,126,945

DSB Development Sdn. Bhd. 423,680 2,373,680

24,777,577 43,971,290
 
 # Included in other receivables, deposits and prepaid expenses are amounts owing by the following related parties   

 which arose from non-trade transactions:

          Group and Company

2008 2007

RM RM

Related parties:

Maris Development Sdn. Bhd. 15,000 15,000
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 During the financial year, significant transactions undertaken by the Group and the Company which are determined on a 
basis as negotiated with the related parties are as follows:

             Group

2008 2007

RM RM

Progress billings receivable from:

Konsortium Melati Ehsan (M) Sdn.  Bhd. - Desa Purnama Sdn. Bhd. 3,459,800 33,525,800

Melati Ehsan Development Sdn. Bhd. 18,781,079 43,441,847

Bonus Focus (M) Sdn. Bhd. 6,998,330 2,926,211

DSB Development Sdn. Bhd. - 1,953,179

           Group and Company

2008 2007

RM RM

Rental payable to:

Maris Development Sdn. Bhd. 60,000 15,000
 

24. JOINT VENTURES

Interest in Joint Ventures

The financial statements of the Group included the following joint venture operations:

Group

Effective Interest

Joint Ventures 2008 2007 Principal Activities

Pembinaan Kery Sdn. Bhd.
- Pertubuhan Peladang
Kawasan Lahar Bubu 
(“PKSB-PPKLB”)

80 80 Construction of detention pond, channel improvement, new 
drains, installation of flap gates and flood protection bunds 
(“BERTAM Project”)

Konsortium Syarikat Bina 
Darulaman Berhad - 
Pembinaan Kery Sdn. Bhd.
(“BDB-PKSB”)

45 45 Construction of a 2-lane single carriageway road from Durian 
Burung to Kupang in Kedah (“TEKIH Project”)

 
 BERTAM Project and TEKIH Project were awarded by Jabatan Pengairan dan Saliran Malaysia and Jabatan Kerja Raya 

Malaysia respectively to the joint ventures. Thereafter, the joint ventures sub-contracted the said projects to Pembinaan 
Kery Sdn. Bhd. and Bayu Melati Sdn. Bhd., subsidiary companies of the Company as disclosed in Note 23 respectively. 
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 The following amounts represent the Group’s proportionate share of assets and liabilities of the unincorporated joint 
ventures and have been included in the financial statements under their respective classification categories:

                Group

2008 2007

RM RM

Current Assets

Bank balances 1,078 1,339

1,078 1,339

Current Liabilities

Other payables and accrued expenses 1,845 1,845

1,845 1,845

Net Current Liabilities (767) (506)
  
The Group’s proportionate share of the income and expenses of the unincorporated joint ventures are as follows:

  

    Group

2008 2007

RM RM

Contract revenue - -

Contract costs - -

Gross profit - -

Other operating expenses (261) (474)

Loss before tax (261) (474)

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Included in bank balances is a joint account of RM939 (2007: RM961) with Perbadanan Kemajuan Negeri Selangor 
(“PKNS”), the landowner and developer of Bayu Damansara and Bayu Perdana Projects, pursuant to a privatisation 
agreement entered into by the Group and PKNS. The Group was appointed as the turnkey contractor for Bayu 
Damansara and Bayu Perdana Projects under the said privatisation agreement. 

 The joint account is maintained solely for Bayu Damansara and Bayu Perdana Projects and all proceeds collected from 
the sale of the properties are held on behalf of PKNS. 
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(b) Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statements comprise the following:

             Group   Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

Nature RM RM RM RM

Cash and bank balances 8,786,853 4,166,141 1,072,536 420,363

Fixed deposit with licensed banks 63,190,694 32,758,531 20,000,000 20,000,000

71,977,547 36,924,672 21,072,536 20,420,363

Less:

Joint account with PKNS (939) (961) - -

Deposit pledged with financial institution (7,227,191) (1,736,329) - -

Amount deposited into sinking fund trust account (7,313,304) (1,622,203) - -

Net 57,436,113 33,565,179 21,072,536 20,420,363

 Included in fixed deposits of the Group and of the Company are amounts of RM7,227,191 (2007 : RM1,736,329) 
pledged to certain financial institution as security for bank guarantees granted.

 The effective interest rates per annum range as follows:

             Group   Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

% % % %

 Deposits with licensed banks 2.30 - 3.46 2.30 - 3.45 2.30 - 3.46 2.30 - 3.45

 Deposits of the Group and of the Company have maturity period range from 1 to 90 (2007 : 1 to 90) days.

26. BASIC EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE 

 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company 
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year.

            Group

2008 2007

RM RM

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 18,886,455 29,514,139

            Group

2008 2007

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 120,000,434 73,581,452
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             Group

2008 2007

Sen Sen

Basic earnings per share 15.74 40.11

27.  DIVIDENDS
 
 The first and final dividend of 7.5 sen per ordinary share, less 26% tax, amounting to RM6,660,024, proposed in respect of 

the previous financial year and dealt with in the previous directors’ report, was paid by the Company during the financial 
year.

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

 The operations of the Group and of the Company are subject to a variety of financial risks, including interest rate risk, credit 
risk, liquidity risk and cash flow risk. The Group and the Company have formulated a financial risk management framework 
whose principal objective is to minimise the Group and the Company’s exposure to risk and/or costs associated with the 
financing, investing and operating activities of the Group and of the Company.

 Interest Rate Risk

 The Group and the Company are exposed to interest rate risk through the impact on rate changes on bank borrowings, 
hire-purchase payables and interest bearing fixed deposits. The interest rates of bank borrowings, hire-purchase payables 
and interest bearing fixed deposits of the Group and the Company are disclosed in Notes 19, 20 and 25 respectively.

 Credit Risk 

 The Group and the Company are exposed to credit risk mainly from trade receivables. However, the Group and the Company 
will extend credit to its customers based on careful evaluation of the customers’ financial condition and credit history and 
ensures a large number of customers so as to limit high credit concentration in a customer or customers from a particular 
market.

 The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk in relation to its trade receivables, should all its customers fail to 
perform their obligations as of August 31, 2008, is the carrying amount of these receivables as disclosed in the balance 
sheets except for long-term project claims receivable which is not expose to credit risk, as disclosed in Note 14.

 Liquidity Risk

 The Group and the Company practise prudent liquidity risk management to minimise the mismatch of financial assets and 
liabilities and to maintain sufficient credit facilities for contingent funding requirement of working capital.

 Cash Flow Risk 

 The Group and the Company review their cash flow position regularly to manage their exposure to fluctuations in future 
cash flows associated with their monetary financial instruments. 

 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

 The Group provides performance guarantee to third parties. The fair value of such financial guarantee is not expected to be 
material as the probability of the Company defaulting on the credit lines is remote.
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The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities as reported in the balance sheets as of August 31, 2008, approximate 
their fair values because of the short maturity terms of these instruments, except for the following: 

 

              2008     2007

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

Group Note RM RM RM RM

Financial asset

Long-term project claims receivable 14 67,613,800 66,081,644 21,028,400 19,838,113

Financial liabilities

Hire-purchase payables 20 278,727 284,662 181,111 174,984

Long-term loan 19    59,979,604 59,769,442  19,164,139   17,954,151

 The fair values of hire-purchase payables and long-term loan are estimated using the discounted cash flow analysis based 
on current borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements ranging from 4.62% to 6.00% (2007 : 4.62% to 6.00%) 
per annum.

29.  CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

 As of August 31, 2008, the Group have the following capital commitments in respect of:

             Group

2008 2007

RM RM

Contracted but not provided for:

Purchase of vacant land - 27,000,000

 The abovementioned land acquisition was completed and accordingly recorded as land held for property development as 
disclosed in Note 11.

30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

 As of August 31, 2008, the Group and the Company have the following contingent liabilities in respect of:

          Group and Company

2008 2007

RM RM

Secured:

Guarantees given to financial institution on performance guarantee granted to third parties 54,250,000 7,500,000
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           Company

2008 2007

RM RM

Unsecured:

Guarantees given to financial institution on long-term loan granted to a subsidiary company 152,844,038 -

Guarantee given to suppliers for credit facilities granted to subsidiary companies 4,800,000 -

211,894,038 7,500,000
 

 The secured bank guarantee facilities of the Group are secured by pledge of deposits of the Group as disclosed in  
Note 25.

31. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

 Business Segments

 The Group operates mainly in the construction industry.

 Geographical Segments

 The Group’s activities are located in Malaysia only.
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Statement by Directors

The Directors of MELATI EHSAN HOLDINGS BERHAD. state that, in their opinion, the financial statements of the Group, 
which comprise the balance sheets as of August 31, 2008, and the related income statements, statement of changes in 
equity and cash flow statement for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory notes, as set out on pages 30 to 62, are drawn up in accordance with the applicable Malaysian Accounting 
Standards Board approved accounting standards and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as of August 31, 2008, and of the results of their businesses and the cash 
flows of the Group for the year ended on that date.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors, 

DATO’ DR. KU ABD RAHMAN BIN KU ISMAIL   TAN SRI DATO’ YAP SUAN CHEE
Director        Director    

Kuala Lumpur,
December 10, 2008

Declaration by the Director 
Primarily Responsible for the Financial Management of the Company

I, LIM TONG HEE, the director primarily responsible for the financial management of MELATI EHSAN HOLDINGS BERHAD, 
do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements of the Group, which comprise the balance sheets as of 
August 31, 2008, and the related income statements, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year 
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 30 to 62, in 
my opinion, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the 
provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

LIM TONG HEE

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the 
abovenamed LIM TONG HEE at PETALING JAYA 
this 10th day of December 2008.

Before me,

COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS
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Analysis of Shareholdings
as at 31 December 2008

SHARE CAPITAL 

Authorised Share Capital  : RM100,000,000/- divided into 200,000,000 shares of RM0.50 each
Issued capital  : 120,000,434 shares of RM0.50 each
Fully paid-up capital : RM60,000,217/-
Class of Shares   : Ordinary shares of RM0.50 each 
Voting rights    : 1 vote per share  

ANALYSIS BY SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS 

No. of No. of 

Size of Shareholdings Shareholders % Share Held %

Less than 100 4 0.33 200 0.00

100 – 1,000 229 18.82 209,700 0.18

1,001 – 10,000 725 59.57 3,509,900 2.92

10,001 – 100,000 215 17.67 7,144,800 5.95

100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares 39 3.20 25,181,757 20.99

5% and above of issued shares 5 0.41 83,954,077 69.96

Total 1,217 100.00 120,000,434 100.00

LIST OF THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

No. of

Name Shares Held %

1. Alpine Equity (M) Sdn. Bhd. 28,360,735 23.63

2. Melati Ehsan Corporation Sdn. Bhd. 25,092,678 20.91

3. Desalink Sdn. Bhd. 13,955,075 11.63

4. Lembaga Tabung Haji 9,716,400   8.10

5. SP Epark Konsortium Sdn. Bhd. 6,829,189   5.69

6. Harta Mantap Sdn. Bhd. 5,398,398   4.50

7. Malaysian Assurance Alliance Berhad 2,900,000   2.42

8. Tan Hong Hing @ Tan Eng Hing 2,159,359   1.80

9. Malay-Sino Formic Acid Sdn. Bhd. 2,000,000   1.67

10. M.I.T Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.

Pledged Securities Account for Hor Han Keng 1,770,000  1.47

11. Lim Tong Yong @ Lim Tong Yaim 1,757,800   1.46

12. HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.

HSBC (Malaysia) Trustee Berhad for Amanah Saham Sarawak 1,000,000 0.83

13. Lim Peng Hong 1,000,000   0.83

14. M.I.T Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.

Pledged Securities Account for Teng Siew Kean 788,000  0.66

15. Toh Hoon Kheng 420,000   0.35

16. Lee Yoke Ming 417,000   0.35
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No. of

Name Shares Held %

17. EB Nominees (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad

Pledged Securities Account for Hor Han Keng 362,100  0.30

18. IM Holdings Sdn. Bhd. 350,000   0.29

19. Pang Tin @ Pang Yon Tin 350,000   0.29

20. Gan Boon Hoon 346,600   0.29

21. Khoo Chai Kaa 315,000   0.26

22. Chen Soh Chang 294,500   0.25

23. Ke-Zan Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.

Kim Eng Securities Pte. Ltd. for Wong Lee Yun 271,900  0.23

24. Dato’ Dr. Ku Abd Rahman Bin Ku Ismail 270,200   0.23

25. Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.

Pledged Securities Account for Kong Goon Khing 243,900  0.20

26. Cimsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.

CIMB Bank for Rudy Ng Chong Jin 200,000 0.17

27. Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn. Bhd.

Exempt An for Citibank NA, Singapore 200,000  0.17

28. Lee Ah Cheiw 200,000   0.17

29. Lim Peng Hong 200,000   0.17

30. Universal Trustee (Malaysia) Berhad

Alliance Dana Adib 172,900  0.14

Total 107,341,734    89.45

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (AS SHOWN IN THE REGISTER OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS)   
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2008

         No. of Ordinary shares of RM0.50 Each

Name of  Substantial Shareholders Direct % Indirect %

1)   Alpine Equity (M) Sdn. Bhd. 28,360,735 23.63 - -

2)   Melati Ehsan Corporation Sdn. Bhd. 25,092,678 20.91 - -

3)   Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee - - 59,639,811 ~ 49.70

4)   Puan Sri Datin Teng Siew Kean 788,000 0.66 25,092,678 # 20.91

5)   Desalink Sdn. Bhd. 13,955,075 11.63 - -

6)   Radzulai Bin Yahaya - - 13,955,075 ^ 11.63

7)   SP Epark Konsortium Sdn. Bhd. 6,829,189 5.69 - -

8)   Zaitun Binti Dato’ Seri Abu Bakar - - 20,784,264 * 17.32

9)   Lembaga Tabung Haji 9,716,400 8.10 - -
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Analysis of Shareholdings
as at 31 December 2008

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2008

Director’s Name           No. of Ordinary shares of RM0.50 Each

The Company Direct % Indirect %

1)   Dato’ Dr. Ku Abd Rahman Bin Ku Ismail 270,200 0.23 - -

2)   Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee - - 59,639,811 ~ 49.70

3)   Ir. Tan Hong Hing @ Tan Eng Hing 2,159,359 1.80 - -

4)   Radzulai Bin Yahaya - - 13,955,075 ^ 11.63

5)   Lim Tong Hee 20,000 0.02 - -

6)   Dato’ Mohd Zain Bin Yahya - - - -

7)   Datuk Alias Bin Ali - - - -
 

Notes :-

1. #  Deemed interested by virtue of her substantial shareholding in Melati Ehsan Corporation Sdn. Bhd.
2. ^   Deemed interested by virtue of his substantial shareholding in Desalink Sdn. Bhd. 
3. *   Deemed interested by virtue of her substantial shareholding in  Desalink Sdn. Bhd. and SP Epark  Konsortium Sdn. Bhd. 
4. ~ Deemed interested by virtue of his substantial shareholding in Melati Ehsan Corporation Sdn. Bhd., 
     Alpine  Equity (M) Sdn. Bhd., Harta Mantap Sdn. Bhd. and shareholding of his spouse .  
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The properties of the Group as at 31 August 2008 are as follows:-

Net book value/

Cost as at

Description/ Date of Tenure/ 31 August 2008

Location Existing use Acquisition Area Age of building (RM ’000)

Lot No. 83958 PN 11849,

Lot No. 83959 PN 11850,

Lot No. 83961 PN 11852,

Lot No. 83962 PN 11853,

Lot No. 83963 PN 11854 and 

Lot No. 83964 PN 11851 

Pekan Pandamaran, District of Klang, 

Selangor Darul Ehsan

Development 

land

25 July 2007 43.4 acres Leasehold 

(expiring on 

23/12/2101)

32,000

Lot No. 83965, Section 3 

PN 24371 

Pekan Pandamaran, District of Klang, 

Selangor Darul Ehsan

Development 

land

25 July 2007 56.4 acres Leasehold 

(expiring on 

26/11/2105)

List of Properties 
as at 31 August 2008



I/We               
(FULL NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS)

of               
(ADDRESS)

being a member(s) of MELATI EHSAN HOLDINGS BERHAD hereby appoint       

              
(FULL NAME)

of               
(ADDRESS)

or failing him/her,             
(FULL NAME)

of               
 (ADDRESS)

or failing *him/her, the Chairman of the meeting as *my/our proxy to vote for *me/us and on *my/our behalf at the FOURTH 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company to be held at the Banquet Hall, Kuala Lumpur Golf & Country Club, No. 
10, Jalan 1/70D, Off Jalan Bukit Kiara, 60000 Kuala Lumpur on Wednesday, 25 February 2009, at 10.30 a.m. and at any 
adjournment thereof.

(* strike out whichever is not desired)

My/Our proxy is to vote as indicated below:

NO. RESOLUTIONS FOR AGAINST

1. To receive the Audited Financial Statements and Reports

2. To declare a first and final dividend of 5.5 sen per ordinary share less tax

3. To approve Directors’ fees 

4. Re-election of Dato’ Prof. Dr. Sudin Bin Haron as director

5. Re-election of Dato’ Dr. Ku Abd Rahman Bin Ku Ismail as Director

6. Re-election of Tan Sri Dato’ Yap Suan Chee as  Director

7. Re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte KassimChan as Auditors

8. Ordinary Resolution 1 – Authority to issue shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 
1965

9. Ordinary Resolution 2 – Proposed Renewal of the Existing Shareholders’ Mandate For Recurrent 
Related Party Transactions Of a Revenue Or Trading Nature

 
Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided how you wish your vote to be cast. If no instruction as to voting is given, the Proxy will 
vote or abstain from voting at his discretion.

Dated this …………….. day of ………………………………….. 2009

No. of Shares held

CDS Account No.

Tel No. (during office hours)

Notes:-

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to appoint up to two (2) proxies to attend and vote 
instead of him/her.  A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and the provisions of Section 149(1)(b) of the Companies 
Act, 1965 shall not apply to the Company.

2. Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless he/she specifies the proportion of his/her 
shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.

3. In the case of a corporate member, the instrument appointing a proxy shall be under its common seal or under the hand of some 
officer of the corporation, duly authorised on that behalf.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Company’s Registered Office at No. 5, Jalan Titiwangsa, 53200 Kuala 
Lumpur not less than 48 hours before the time set for the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

PROXY FORM

     
Signature



AFFIX
STAMP

1ST FOLD HERE

FOLD THIS FLAP FOR SEALING

THEN FOLD HERE

The Company Secretary
MELATI EHSAN HOLDINGS BERHAD 
(673293-X)

No. 5, Jalan Titiwangsa
53200 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia 




